
.U rd meeting- 9 july 1982 2.~ 

33rd meeting 
Friday, 9 July 1982, at 10.45 a.m. 

Prestdent: Mr. Miljan KOMATINA (Yugoslavia) 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

Adoption of the agenda and other organizational 
matters (continued)* (E/ 1982/79) 

l. The PRES I DENT introduced the report of the 
Committee o n Non-Governmental O rganizatio ns (E/ 
1982/ 79). in which it recommended that the Council 

E/llJX2/S R .. 1:\ 

shou ld authon ze the organizations li:.ll:d in the report to 
be heard under the agenda items indicated. If he heard no 
ohjection. he took 1t that the Co uncil apprO\·ed the 
Commiuee·s recommendation. 

It was so decided. 
., The PRESID ENT infom1ed the Cl)uncil that the 
Intergovernmenta l Committee for Migration had a~ked 
to participate in the work of the Council. unde r rule 7lJ of 
the Council\ rules o f procedure. during the con~ideration 
of agenda item~ 8 (Convening o( an International 



24 Economic and Social Council- Second 

Conference on Population in 19~). 17 (Science and 
technology for development) and 19 (Operational 
activities). 

The Council agreed to the request of the Intergovern­
mental Committee for Migration. 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

Gt~neral discussion of international economic and social 
policy, including regional and sectoral developments 
(continued) 

3. Mr. HINTEREGGER (Austria) said that his 
cour:try was concerned at the steady decline in the 
intluence of the Council. While it was true that past 
attempts to refonn the structures and procedures had 
not pmduced the desired results. Austria. for it5 part. still 
preferred a step-by-step retonn based on a number of 
short-term measures. to a full restructuring. which would 
require a redefinition of the Council's role and mandate. 
His delegation had already submitted a number of specific 
suggestions to that dfect during the first regular sess1on of 
1982. The proposals contained in the workmg paper 
submitted by the President on the important issue of the 
revitalization of the Council (Conference Room Paper 
19R2/4) should also provide d ba-.is for arriving at specific 
decisions and recommendations during the session. 
4. The almost universal slowing down in economic 
activity in 1981 confinned that the 'World economic crisis 
wa~ persisting and the World Economic Sun·ey 1981-1982 
stressed the uncertainty of a rapid recovery. Unemploy­
ment was continuing to rise in both industrialized and 
developing countrie;; no decline in interest rates had ~o 
far materialized; the volatility and amplitude of exchange 
rate movements were often detrimental to the inter­
national divbion of labour. as were tariffs; commodity 

had reached an all-time low. producing extremely 
se-rious consequences for the deYeloping countrie-;. which 
had to rely on exports of a few commodities for their main 
source of foreign exchange; protectionism had become 
considerably stronger and an escalation of protectionist 
rr.easures could no longer be discounted; la'otly, rece'>sion 
h.ld dimmed the pros.pects of any substantial increase m 
offlcial development assi~tance. The developing countne;, 
Wt're particularly affected by the cri~is and their per cap ira 
output had even decreased in 19H I. Naturally, the 
situation was of even greater concern for the least 
developed countrie'>. 
5. Austna believed that a la:,ting impnn·t'mcnt in 
international economic relations could be achieved onlv 
through a global dmlogue and renewed co-operatio~ 
between industrialized and developing countries. 
Unfortunatelv. the recent '>Ummit meetmgs in Cancun 
and Versailles had not led to an agre~?ment on the 
launching of global negotiation.;;. 
6. Turning to ~orne speci!ic i~..,uec.. he reminded the 
Council that Austria attached great importance to the 
maintenance of a liberal sy:-.tem of trade. The mini-;tenal 
meeting of GATT to be held at the end of 1982 <>hould be 

concerned primarily with measures to contain protection­
ist pressures and to stimulate world trade. Concerning 
preparations for the sixth session of the United Nations 
Conference on Trade and Development. he congratu­
lated the Secretary-General of UNCTAD on his realistic 
approach and on having succeeded in having the 
provisional agenda approved by the Trade and Develop­
ment Board. His country. however, regretted that the 
text had had to be put to the vote and hoped that no effort 
would be spared to create a common area of agreement 
prior to the sixth session. His country was fully aware that 
the Common Fund for Commnditie~ would nZ)t be able to 
eliminate all the problems which the developing countrie" 
were facing. but hoped that that instrument of inter­
national co-operation would become operative as soon a~ 
possible. Austria had initiated the necessary ratification 
procedure~. -

7. Development'> in relation to international financial 
institutions were a matter of considerable concern. in 
particular with regard to IDA. His country had partici­
pated in the general capital increase of the World Bank 
and in the sixth replenishment of the resources of IDA 
and was currently considering, together with other 
countries. the possibilities of providing adequate financial 
<.upport to IDA in the critical vear of 19R4. Au~tria had 
also participated in the repleni~hment of the resources of 
the Asian Development Fund, the Inter-American 
Development Bank and the Inter-American Develop­
ment Fund. In 1981. it had joined the African Develop­
ment Fund and was envisaging membership in the African 
Development Bank. 

8. Within recent years. high priority had rightly been 
given to agricultural development and food security. 
Efforts should be made to intensify international co­
operation in that field. His countrv had recently acceded 
to the Food Aid Convention and had started to contribute 
to the FAO International Emergency Food Reserve; it 
had also increased its contribution to WFP. 
9. Au~tria remained con'vinced that UNDP should 
continue to be both the co-ordinating centre and the 
central financing channel for all technical co-operation 
activitie~ in the Cnited Nations -;y~tem. In particular. his 
delegation welcomed the recent re-ordering of priorities 
in favour of the po,)rer countries. The fact that the 
Programme was currently hampered by the 'StagnatiOn of 
it~ resource-; wa~ a direct consequence of the world 
economic situatl(m and not a sign of a crisi-, of confidence 
in lJNDP itself. Within the limit~ of its re:-.ources. his 
country had constantly increased Its voluntary contri­
bution-, to { JN D P during recent years and would continue 
to do so during the third programming cycle. 
I 0. Experience acquired in the field of science and 
technology over the pa:,t three years and. in particular. at 
the most n:cent '-,CSSinn of the Intergovernmental Com­
mittee on Science and Technology for Development had 
demonstrated that it was extremely diftkult to remm e the 
obstacle:-. to a more eflective application of science and 
technology for development. The e:-.tabli.,hment of the 
United Nations Financing Svstcm for Science and 
T cchnolog:y for Develop'ffien-t wa:-, of con5iderable 



33rd 

importance, and it was to be hoped that the progress 
already achieved would make it possible for a consensus 
to emerge during the forthcoming consultations. 
11. On the question of energy. in relation to which 
Austria had intensified its efforts in research and 
development in new and renewable sources of energy. the 
adoption of the Nairobi Programme of Action was of 
particular importance. The re;ults of the recent session of 
the Interim Committee on New and Renewable Sources 
of Energy were encouraging. 
12. Humanitarian matters had always been of particular 
interest to his country. Austria. which in Europe played 
the role of a country of first asylum. appreciated the work 
of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees 
in Europe and on other continents. He underlined the 
importance of the role of the Office of the United Nations 
Disaster Relief Co-ordinator in dealing with emergencies 
brought about by natural disasters. 
13. A common element emerged from the documents 
before the Council and its discu'Ssions: lack of funds was 
frequently the most serious obstacle to economic 
development and social progress. The interrelationship 
between development and disarmament could not be 
ignored and it wa"> shocking to see enormous resource~ 
being devoted to military purposes when the needs of 
large sectors of the population of the world remained 
umnet. It was to be hoped that the deliberations at the 
twelfth special session of the General Assembly lsecond 
special session devoted to di;;armament) would give rise 
to a growing awarene~s of the urgent need for a 
redistribution of resources, making it possible to reduce 
military expenditure and distribute the funds which would 
thu-. become available to meet -.ocial needs. 
14. Mr. SAOUMA (Director-GeneraL Food and 
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations) said that 
mankind did not seem to have realized the danger which 
lay in the coexistence of a bilhon human being~ living in 
absolute poverty and a minoritv threatened bv excessive 
well-being and overfeeding. What was worse stilL in the 
face of that explo-.ive situation. was that militarv budget!'. 
went unchecked and indu-.trialized countries which \\~ere 
hardly managing to reach half of the target for official 
development assistance of 0. 7 per cent of their GNP were 
regularly devoting 5 to 6 per cent of Gl':P to arms 
expenditure. The total nf the F AO budgeb since its 
establishment in llJ45 covered barelv half the co;,t of one 
nuclear submarine. , 

15. Faced with the ~erious world economiC crisis 
marked mer the year;, by persistent inflation. \ iolent 
currencv fluctuations. verv high interest rate'>, growmg 
underernplovment and inc~easinglv acute ~ocial t~n~iom,'. 
the OECD C'ouncil of Ministers~ had recenth reaffirmed 
that it wa~ c;,sential. in order to en~ure- continuing 
non-inflationary growth. to inten;,ify productive invest­
ment. mcrease productiVltv and maintain a liberal trading 
sy~tcm. A further con;,ideration was that, to overcom~ 
the cnsi.;,, the de\ eloped countrie;, needed new markets. 
The underfed and under-eqmpped countrie" of the third 
world constituted almo~t unhmited potential markets. 
and, in hi;, opinion, the key to economic recovery lay in 

1982 

the expansion of trade with the potential consumer:. of the 
third world. 
16. However, such expansion presuppo;,ed a more 
equitable organization of international relations. The 
recent Versailles summit meeting perhap~ justified some 
hope in that respect. because heads of State and 
Government had once again <>olemnly approved the 
principle of opening global negotiation-; between North 
and South. The FAO Conference in November Jl)t)J had. 
for its part. approved the principle of active participation 
by FAO in the preparation of those negotiation,, \\hich 
should allow the priority review which question~ of food 
and agnculture deserved. 
17. In the short term, the world's food and agriculture 
situation seemed to give rise to le'>s concern than 
previously. The 1981 harvests had on the ""hole been 
good and world grain production had increa5ed by 7 per 
cent, while pro-.pects for 1982 were rea~onably tanmr­
able. Unfortunately, progress had he en very unevenly 
distributed: re-,ults were favourable in A~ia and the Far 
Ea:,t, in Latin America, in North America and Oceania, 
but disappointing in Europe, the Soviet lin ion. the 
Middle Ea~t and Africa. In the lea>.t developed countne:'., 
food supplie!-. had decrea~cd by 2 per cent m l9H I . 
Overall. 23 countries were currentlv ~utTering from acute 
food shortages and almost I 0 mifhon refugees needed 
help for their daily 5ub-.istence. 
JR. ln the long term. the trend remained disquieting, 
particularly in Afnca. In the previous decade. 37 
low-income countries had had a negative per capita 
growth rate of grain production, and in 19 of tho5.e 
countries the absolute volume of production had e\en 
decreased. As a result. the developing countries were 
increa~mgly forced to resort to gram imports for suni\al. 
and those imports had doubled in the previous 10 year'> to 
reach the staggering figure of 100 million tonne'>. Demand 
for food and agricultural products m the third \\Orld 
would double during the coming two decade:- and 
production would have to grow by ~ome 50 to flO per cent 
to su~tain a world populati,m of more than o billion. 
19. In a recent ;,tudy entitled Agriculture: Toward 2000. 
F AO had made a pro;,pcctivc analv-.i" of \Vorld food and 
agricultural trend-. and possibilitte'> until the end of the 
century. It had examined three pm"ible ;,cenarios m l)() 

developing countric;, and in the mo-.t optimistic of them it 
had reached the conclu::.ion that the number of under­
nounshed people would decrea-,e from 450-500 million to 
about 250 million bv the end of the centurY. It was 
therefore e-.sential to stress the need to implement 
\\ithout delay the global tood programme which he had 
outlined before the Council a year pre\ 1ously and wh1ch 
aimed at ;;tJmulating agricultural production by a massive 
mvestment programme, by mobtlizmg more nattonal 
re~ources and providing more ~uh~tantial aid from the 
international communit\. bv ~trenethening food ~ecuntv 
at the world. regional -ami localleveb. b> ltberalizing 
acces"> to the m;trket-> of developed cou~trie~ and by 
en~uring stable and remunerative exporb from develop­
ing countrie~. 
20. There was no alternative· production had to he 



26 Economic and Social Council- Second 1982 

-,tcppcd up and the available food mu~t be more 
dfectiYcly distributed. For that purpose, It was necessary 
to invest more in the agricultural-,ector ami to devote to it 
a larger :-hare of current budgeh and long-term invest­
ments. Energy in agriculture wa;, also of capital 
importance. The Interim Committee on New and 
Renewable Source:-. of Energy had pointed out at its 
recent ~e<;-;ion the need for the integrated development of 
rural energy. It had also emphasized the need to 
overcome th..: present fuel wood shortage m many 
countrie;,. 

21. According to the FAO study. gro:-s annual inve-;t­
ment in agriculture would have to total between $100 and 
$1}0 billion at 1975 prices by the end of the century. At 
that level of financing. the growth rdtc of agricultural 
production would he do~e to 3.7 per cent per year, which 
would make it possible to realize the most optimi~tic of 
the three <.cenarios mentioned. Of course. the pour 
countries would never he ahk to allocate such amounts 
from their resources alone and foreign aid to agncultun: 
remained essentiaL According to FAO calculations. aid 
would have to total at least $12.5 billion in 19lJO. 
Unfortunately. a number of disquieting ~ign~ of di~­
affo;;ction towards international a.,sistance and the 
multilateral sector had been noted. Official development 
assistance, m general, and aid for agriculture in 
particular, had declined in real value :,ince 1977. a fact 
that was all the more paradoxical since at each summit 
meeting it had been recognized that priority should be 
given to agriculture. 

7 1 Similarly. a gradual slide from multilateral to 
bilateral aid. supposedly more in line with national 
interests. wa~ taking place and it was being claimed more 
and more freyuently that salvation lay in the market 
economy and private enterprise. The question then arose 
who would inve:-.t in the poorest countries and, above alL 
in the food sector. where commercial profitability was 
necessarily lower. It wa<:> also regrettable that the real 
rewurces of IDA. a large part of which normally went to 
agriculture and rural development. had been cut by more 
than 25 per cent. and those of IFAD and UNDP by 25-30 
per cent. The resources of WFP were also heing eroded 
from vear to vear and food aid was stagnating. while manv 
need; could ·not be met. FAO attach~ed pri'ffiary import­
ance to the question of investment. and projecb prepared 
by its Inve-.;tment Centre ;,incc its establishment in 1964 
had generated commitmenb amounting to some $20 
billion for investments in the third world. 

23. In the equally important field of world food security, 
some progress had been made since IMF had provided 
new "food facilities" and the International Emergency 
Food Re;,erve had reached its minimum target of 500.000 
tonnes of grain, but basically the situation remained 
blocked. The negotiation of a new international grain 
agreement was at an impa~..,e and the lacb. of resource., 
and readme"" on the part of the international community 
to finance national or reg10nal food security projects 
prevented the poore'>t countries from taking advantage of 
the current good harvest to e<;tabli;,h ;,ecurity rt·serves. 
There wa'i no mechanism to guarantee <>upplie~ for poor 

food-deticit countries. None the le5s, the elements ol a 
true food securitv svstem were known: national stocks. 
regional arrange1;1ents, price clauses and a world security 
resen c, food aid that wa-.; tailored to need-;. and a 
~ati~factory mechanism for intervention that was depend­
able and truly multilateral in emergencies. The only thing 
that was lacking was the political wilL It wa;, to be hoped 
that that vital issue would have a pre-eminent place in 
global negotiations. 

2.f. Turning to the controversial question of inter­
national trade relations, he pointed out that for 
developmg countries the chronic imtability of export 
market<> >vas a major handicap which could hamper the 
harmonious implementation of their development pro­
gramme'> and check any possibility of growth. While 
inflation remained h1gh and production costs in those 
countries were constantly increasing, their total export 
revenues stagnated in real value or c\en declined. To buy 
neces-.ary equipment at ever-increasing prices. those 
countries had to sell more and more raw materials at 
lmver prices determined outside their countries without 
any reference to production cost or to the general 
development of prices for imported product-.. The great 
international tinancial markets. futures exchanges and 
:-.peculation ahvays affected market forces to the 
advantage of the stronger of the parties. That harsh 
reality. although often contested by importing countries 
or international groups which were subtly operating in the 
international market, had been clearly brought out once 
again in a recent FAO study entitled FAD Commodity 
Review and Outlook 1981-1982. 

25. Developing countries· foreign exchange revenue 
from their agricultural exports had decrea<,cd in real 
term~ by more than 3 per cent in 19RO, and, as a result, in 
l980-Il)8l, :w developing countries had had to resort to 
the compensatory cereal financing facility of I MF, and the 
funds of the European Economic Community STABEX 
system for the :-.tabilization of export receipts had been 
insufficient to meet transfer requests. Clearly, without a 
lasting stabilization of markets at remunerative prices or 
the launching of a liberal policy for access to markets, 
trade relations would continue to be unfavourable for the 
poor countries. Unfortunately. progress in that respect 
was particularly di~appointing: work by UNCT AD on the 
Integrated Programme for Commodities had not pro­
gres<sed since 1976. and the Common Fund for 
(~ommoditie-. had still not been set up, which was all the 
more regrettable since a ;,cries of projects that might be 
financed hy the Second Window of the Fund had hcen 
prepared with the help of FAO. 

26. !V1canwhile, many protectioni<,t tariff and, particu­
larly, non-tariff measures were still hampering the export 
of primary commodities and manufactured products from 
developing countries. It would be desirable for the GA 1T 
mini..,terial meeting in November 1982 to decide on a 
sub-.tantial liberalization of agricultural trade, especially 
for commodities of interc-.t to developing eountries. 
Those eountrie~ should take that opportunity to develop 
trade relations among them~elves and give decisive 
impetu'> to their mutual economic co-operation. 



33rd 

27. The FAO :-,tudy entitled Agriculwre: Toward 2000 
~oberly revealed the world's responsihilities. Unless the 
trend could be reversed. mi~ery and hunger would <,pre ad 
inexorahly: however. it was pos~ible to reduce those 
scourge~ by rearranging priorities and policies. On the 
ba:-.is of the long experience of F AO. he had briefly 
sketched the main lines of a global programme to combat 
malnutrition and hoped that the Council would be able to 
ghe it support. The programme was reali5.tic; it could he 
carrinl out and financed. Howe\·er. it pn::suppo~ed a 
political will for action and a radH:al change of attitude. 
The prtlhlem wa~ above all a political one which must he 
treated a;. -.,uch and given the nece%ary priori tv. 

2!\. Mr. NAIK (Pakistan) nott.:d that the world 
economic -;ituation presented a di-;couragmg pro~pcct. 
The reces~ion. which was affecting mo'>t countries. was 
leading to attitudes and practices which were hm ing 
n:percussions on international economic relation;.. Tht: 
world economy wa~ at a lmv ebb. but the most ~eritm~ 
problem was perhaps the <,harp detenoratton in North­
South relations. There\\ a~ a danger that the :;,lm\ -down in 
international co-operation might do la:,ting damage not 
only to the rate of development of the poorer nation-;. hut 
also to the economic pro:.pcrity of the \\<orld as a whole. 

24. The per~i-.tenn: of the world rece:-.sion wa;, clearly 
brought out in the report'> :,ubmitted to the Council. They 
showed that at the globalle\eL GOP had increased at le-.;. 
that 2 per cent per annum in tht: first three year~ of the 
pre~ent decade. World economit: activitv reflected the 
t:<.mdition:-, and trend'> of the developed market econonn-, 
e\en though growth rates were faster elsewhere. Con'>t:­
qucntly. one of the chid cau5.es of the problem wa:, the 
deep rece,sion affecting those countrie~. That rece:-.~ion 
had inevitably had important repercu~"inn~ on world 
trade. and It \\a'> exported. through trade. to the 
developing countrit:'i. In addition, its impact on the 
developing countrie" · trade and cxp~)rb wa" further 
magnified by protectionism. It was world trade which, hy 
expanding at a rate of X per cent a year during the I ()fl()s 
and at a slightly reduced rate in the Jl)JO~. had permitted a 
~ustained grmvt h of production and of prosperitv through 
the restructuring of activitie~ between nation-.. The 
abandonment of-more liberal trade practJct:" \\Ould cw-;e 
-.erious damage to growth and living standards in all 
countries of the world. 

30. In 19R I. the growth in world trade had halted and 
even decreased: in addition. the ~tructure and <.:ompo-;I­
tHm of trade and the earning<> of de\ eloping countrie" had 
'>uffered the cff....·cts nf fluctuations in the exchange rate:-.. 
Those lluctuations had chielly affectt:d the poorest 
countries, which were unable to adjust the composition 
and distribution of their exports with sufficient rapidity. 
In addition. the determination of exchange rates seem~ to 
be governed less and le<,:, by competitivenes-; and more 
and more by mterest rates and capital flov,:-;. For that 
reason. currency rates were subject to spt:culative and 
de:-,tahilizing forces which made it impossible to plan 
medium-term programmes. Countries were tending 
increasingly to adopt administrative measures to protect 
their industries, so that at present exchange rate 

1982 27 

instability could be -.aid to he reinforcing protectionism. 

31. If the current phase of instability and -.tagnation wa" 
to be brought to an end. the de\ eloped markct-cconomv 
countries should take collective action: there mu~t be an 
end to the obsession with mtlatton It wa-. true that the 
fight again'it mtlation wa., nnt: of the majm :-.ubjecb of 
concern throughout the world: however. the pur.,uit of 
that nb]ectiH:: ~hould not mean that all other objecti\ e::­
were overlooked. Hitherto. inflation had hcen -,ucces\­
fully curbed. but at the cmt of de\elopment 111 tht: poor 
countric-. and of employment m the rich countric~: it wa-. 
nt:ither nt:ce~~ary nor de~Irahlc to pay -,uch a high pncc. 
The developed market-economy countrie-., -.hould opt tnr 
a more balanced approach. Thev -.hould attempt to 
harmonize their fiscaL monctarv and anti-inflation 
pnlicie~. if the in~tahility in exchange rate~ \\t:rc not to 
continue to damage tht: \\oriel economic ordt:r in general 
and tht: pro~pt:ct-.; of developing countrie" in particular. 

32 Rect:S'iJOn and protectiom->m had eliminated an:. 
po~'>Ibility of export growth. and the dt:\ elPping countrie-., 
were increa'>mgly obliged to pur<.;ue tht: extreme!) co.,th 
polic:. of development in i<.olation. In addition. oil­
importmg devdoping countrie~. and t:'>peoall:- the poorer 
among them. had -.uffen:d senou;;; ... t:tbad:" 111 their term~ 
of trade. The growth ratt: of energy-importing de\ elopmg 
countries had fallen from 5.6 per cent a ) ear m the 1 ':)70~ 
to ! A per cent in 19~ l. In many mstancc-,, that fall had led 
to a decline in rea I per c·apita mcome 

-~·'· It wa~ therefore nece-.,.ar: to re~tore growth m world 
trade. to hm er barrier" to export~ from Ut:\ eloping to 
de\ eloped countnc~. and to organize ratt:~ of e;.,.changt: on 
a fairer ba'.J~. But that was not enough: then.' wa~ al-.,o an 
urgt:nt net:d to improve condition-. for aid and tn prm ide 
wider acce~-., to capital tHl rt:a~onahle term~. OYer a 
ckcadc preYiou~lv. the \\ orld commumt~ had -.ct a 
development aid target ot 0.7 per cent nf GNP: not on!) 
had tht:rc been no progrt::;,-. toward-. that target. but all the 
signs indicated that that aid would even fall hclo\\ the 
level of 0.34 per cent of GNP which it had now attaint:d 

34. At the ~amc time. there had been a ;;harp increa~e in 
mterc-.t ratt:~. SeYeral countric~ had consequently been 
t:ut off from acct.:"" to commercial capitaL either hecau~e 
they found the co~t of horrowing prohibitin'. or because 
banks were reluctant to lend them at ;.,uch high rate:-. 
Other countric~ had rnanagt:d to continue to nhtain fum!-.. 
hut their debt hurden had risen inordmatdy. 

J5. The developing countric<> had made con~iderablc 
efforts to with~tand the ~tre~'>C'< produced b) external 
force~: in the case of Paki~tan, there had heen a 25 per 
cent deterioration in the term.., of trade. a reduction in 
e.xternal aid. and a va-.t refugee problem. Ot:~pite tho~c 
cxtrt:mcly adver~e t:ircumstancc..,. Pakhtan nm\ produced 
enough food grain" to meet it" need:.. and had <.uccecded 
in maintaining GOP gro\\ th rate'> of o per ct:nt fnr the la">t 
five year": howc\er. it h<td had to o.,lnw down ih 
development effort~. 

36. Almost all the developing countrie:- had been forced 
to do the ~ame and to resort to adjustment mea"urc:,, 
which had re5.ulted in the perpetuation of poverty and 



Economic and Social Council- Second 1982 

famine far beyond the expectations even of the poorest 
countries. the retardation of the process of modernization 
in the slightly more advanced countries, and the widening 
of the gap between rich and poor. All three worlds had 
become more than ever entrenched in their positions. 
because developed market-economy countries, over­
preoccupied with internal considerations and price 
stability. were pursuing policie~ which did not meet 
current needs and led more to inequitable stagnation than 
to equitable growth. 

37. The developed Cl)tmtries '>hould no longer <;hift the 
burden of adjustm.cnt on to the -w.cakest. but r,;hnuld share 
it more fairly; they should not preach efficiency only for 
the developing countries. but ~hould practise it nn world 
markets; la~tly. they should have the breadth of vision 
needed to bring about a higher degree of prosperity for 
all. The forum in which ~uch a change could begin already 
exi:-.ted: it wa~ the global North-South negotiations. which 
were currently at a ~tand~till. If progress was to be made 
with reform and programmes of action. such as those 
which had been recommended bv the Brandt Commis­
sion. narrow policies must give wa·y to a wider vision. 

31-1. Delegations haJ become accustomed to meeting 
every year to consider a dekriorating world situation. But 
the chronic international malaise should not lead to a 
hardening of attitud<:.'s in the face ot the need~ of 
developing countrk'~. which in recent years had bet:n 
experiencing increa~ing diftkulty in the uphill ta->k of 
recovery. Although the rate of their development had 
slowed down, the developing countnes had drawn 
comfort fmm the deep concern :".hown bv the w,lrld 
community for their plight. Unfortunately. r1wre concern 
was shown for adjustment than for development. and 
lhere wa~ evidenet: of re<ll indifference to the '>pecial 
needs of the poor. the back ward :md the urH.l<.:rdevdopeci. 
That kind of de,u.Jening of the conscience must he resisted 
at all costs. 

3'f. Mr. ROZE:--.;TAL (\ft:xtco) lh}ted that the World 
Economic Survey !981-1982. which wa.,; the subject ot the 
general debate, painted a Sl'Olbre picture of lht: inter­
national eeonnmic siruation: rate;, of economic growth 
were expected to Iernain \Cry low throughout the world. 
new imbalances m international pa\mcnb w.cre appear­
mg. and adjustmcll!s in tht: field of trade and indu:,tn 
were cncountenng con:-.iJerable diftkultics. The situation 
was particularly ~eriou:-. for the de\'t'loping countrit''>. 
because their G"\P growth ratl· wa~ lower than the r:1tc of 
population increas~. re-.;ulting in a more pronounced 
decline in pa capiw GNP. 
40. The world cn,nomv had het.'n suffering trom thar 
critical :;.ituation for nearfv to vears: <..inct' t•.ni it haJ lll)t 

heen possible to embark on a cour~e ,,f continued growth 
and development. ch:~pile the variou~ diagno"''"i and 
-;olutions that had been otfered. Only three years ago. the 
blame for that situation was being laid on the rigidity of 
certain markets 'iuch as the oil market. the labour market 
or [he cut rcncv market. but it could bc seen touav that 
mo:-.t of the d~vcloped market-eCt)nomy countrie~ had 
a,h\pted to tht' changed ~ituat1on in the oil and lahour 
markets and also to~ developments in the international 

currency market. However. there had been no resump· 
tion of the growth of earlier decades. The current crisis 
had also been attributed to expansionist economic 
policies. The majority of the developed countries 
practised strict fiscal and monetary control. which did not 
prevent interest rates from reaching levels that were so 
high as to have adverse effects on investment and 
consumption. There. too. no satisfactory solution had 
been found. 

-H. His delegation, while not wishing to attempt a new 
diagnosis, wished to draw attention to a factor which. in 
ih view. had not been accorded sufficient importance. 
That factor was the increasing contradiction that existed 
between national economic measures or policies and the 
international character of current economic problems. 
Thus. approximately 17 per cent of the GNP of developed 
countries wa~ now devoted to exports. where<ts barely 10 
years ago that percentage had been only 10.5 per cent. 
That fact dearly showed thaL for the sale of a high 
proportion of the goods they produced. those countries 
depended increasingly on the trade ~ystems, exchange 
fluctuations and credit pohcies of other countries. 

42. The current situation in the oil. and food products 
markets was another a>,pect of the problem: production 
was concentrated in a fe-w exporting countries. and -was 
therefore governed by the policies of those countries. On 
the other hand, there were the consumer countries. which 
might fc:ar that th~..:ir nat1onal security was threatened by 
sharp price fluctuations or by interwntion~ that di-,turbed 
the market. A further illu~tration of the impo;;,sibility of 
solving international problem~ by exdusively national 
measures \.\a<> the way in which monetary policies -were 
currently being u'->ed as a device for internal stabilization. 

·B. It wa,;, often the case that mtemational movements 
of capital e<m ... ed by hJrce;, that w.cre them:;elves produced 
bv international factors le~.:.;ened the ertectiveness of 
n~onetary policit.:::-.. or even counteracted their effects. The 
inh:rna(it1nal di:-.per':>al ot ;,a\ ers <.~nd investors wa~ a 
fourth exampk of the same problem: s::~vings accumu· 
lateJ in one country ended hy heing invested in other 
countries, in order to obtain a hetter rate of return. That 
'>tate ('f affair~ had created deht problem~ in certain 
countrie'> and had ...:au~cd certain financial centre;, W fear 
future liquidtt; cri~es. No con<>istcnt and world-wide 
~olut1on to the prohlern had be.:n found. 

44. There was no doubt that the rate of thc globalization 
1 J[ the\.\ nrld economy would increa;;;e in the year;. ahead if 
it wa:-. dc..;ir..:d t,J :main a better mtcrnatiunal distributk'n 
of labour and bcttt:r chances for all. 13ut if that aim \\a~ tu 
he achieved, 'lome of the international '"rule~ ot th;;­
game'" mu'>t he rc\\ rittcn. in order to prevent one country 
from u~ing ib influence to tmpo;,e measures on others. 
Natilmal pulicic;, adnpted to .,,)lve international problems 
had hitherto only ~ucceeded m exacerbating those 
problem-,: .;;uch policic-, had kd to the cteation of strong 
prok..:tinni~t pre'>5Ufc<;. con-;iderable lluctuation'> on 
commodtty market:--. and international financial -,pecu­
lation. The re-,ult had heen a markeJ decline in 
tme:-tment and insufficient capital growth, factor~ which 



were the root cause of the problems of growth and 
imbalance to which he had referred. 
45. There was therefore a need to reach agreement on 
international problems for which no concerted solution 
had yet been found at the international level. Such a 
consensus should take into account the legitimate 
interests of all countries with regard to reciprocal 
advantages and national security, but should also avmd 
the "beggar-my-neighbour" policies that had been 
followed so far. It was as a step in that direction that 
Mexico had welcomed the international summit meeting 
on co-operation and development which had been held at 
Cancun in October 1981. Heads of State and Government 
of countries representing very different kvds of 
development and diverging economic theories had 
defined four priority sectors which should form the basis 
ot a new international con'>ensus: food security and 
agricultural development: commochties, trade and 
industrialization: energy: and monetary and financial 
que-,tions. In the first .,;ector. it had been strc-.sed that the 
international community should solve the problem of 
food security in the short term by protecting countries 
from fluctuations in the international market in food 
products. In tht.: medium term. self-sufficiency in food 
~hould be promoted by the transfer of production 
technology. technical equipment. and financial aid to 
agriculture. The World Food CounciL which in June 19R2 
had held it~ eighth ministerial session at Acapulco, 
Mexico. had recommended mca~urcs to that end. 
including increased assistance to rural development. 
improvement of the agricultural infra;,tructure. greater 
investment in human resource~ and the elimination of 
obstacle~ to trade in the food and agriculture sector. 

..J.o. The second subject of concern related to commodi­
ties, trade and mdu-.triaiization. In that area, there wa~ a 
need to protect vanou'> developing countncs again<st the 
effect-; of Jluctuations in the commodity market. in so far 
as those Jluctuations affected their foreign exchange 
earnings. To that end, there should be a large number of 
agreements stabilizing commodity markets and pro­
moting indu;,triahzation. especially by combating 
protectioni-.m. The recent delays m connection with the 
Integrated Programme for Commodities d1d not hold out 
much hope in that area for the immediate future. 

-l-7. [n the field of energy, a complete transition process 
should he set m tram, with a view to utilizing '>Ourcc'> of 
energy other than oil and cn~uring that encrgy-1mporting 
de\ eloping countries were not penalized by price llm:tu­
ation~. La;,tl\. there were a number of problem~ to he 
solved 111 the munctar'r and financial field. A~ earl\ a~ 
197<), the de\cloping -countrie-; had submitted a j~lmt 
propo~al for a reviC\\ of the mternatlonal monctan 
sy-;tem: that propo~al would make tt possible to ranonai­
iLe international tinancwl tlows ..,o that the major part of 
the rc'>elurcc~ on '' orld financial market;.. could become 
the dnving force of d..:,elopment. 

..J.i-1. That \\ould he the mmimurn basi;, for an agreement 
on the establi-,hmt>nt of an internatltmal order m wh1ch 
re;,ponsihilitie.., were -,harcd h\ all. and in hi'> view that 
was the only wa\ of ohtaming condition-. f;l\ourahle w 

1982 29 

economic growth. To that encl. the developing countries 
had made a new proposal: a programme of global 
negotiation;,. The negative trend~ in the world economy 
must be halted, and a process of revival must be mitiated 
which would permit the de\ eloping countric~ to play a 
more dynamic role. The proposed global negotiation~ 
would include a scrie~ of measures in the four field~ he had 
referred to, and ~hould be part of a com,i-.tent and 
integrated programme. 

-l-9. At Cancun. all Governments represented at the 
-;ummit meeting had entered into a moral commitment to 
make progress toward:- the opcmng of global negoti­
ation~. Nine months later. there had sttll been no 
agreement on a draft resolution marking the ;.,tart of that 
long and difficult undertaking. The \1ex1can Government 
had recently participated actively m New York in the 
search for compromise formulae whtch would make 
pos\ible the adoption of the draft re:-.olution. The 
Secretary-General of the United Nations had declared 
that in his view no ~ubstantial progress could be made at 
the pre-.ent '>tage of the process, and that those concerned 
should await the outcome of the forthcommg '>erie:> of 
consultations to be held bv the Pre:>idcnt of the Gt>ncral 
As:-,emhly. 

50. Prospects for ~uecess on that occa~ion appeared 
favourable, \incc the United State'> reprc~cntative m the 
CounciL in hi:-. stakment the previous day (31st meeting). 
had reaffirmed the undertak.mg gi' en by the Prc.,idcnt of 
the United States at the Cancun and Vcr;.,aille:-. ~umm1t 
meeting'> and had expressed hi~ intention to contmue the 
'>earch for common ground. Mexico wished once again to 
urge that the dbcussions should he brought to an end as 
early as po.,'>ible and that the real \\Ork should be begun . 
The Group of 77, for it5 part, had expre~sed it~ de.,irc to 
adopt a Jlexible, positive attitude. and it wa.., willing to 
compromise. as it had ;.,hown by accepting tW<) of the four 
amendments to the draft resolution that had been 
submitted, and by proposmg different wording for the 
two other amendment;,. Mexico hoped that the advanced 
countric'> would continue to show goodwill and would 
accept the cmmtcr-propo-,ah of the Group of 77. If the 
Impetus generated by the Cancun and Versailles -;ummit 
meetings\\ a~ allowed to ~l<Kken, then an mit1at1ve \\ h1ch 
offered the mn'>t important ~ingle pro~pect tor the 19HOs 
for economic negotiation at the multilateral lc\ el would 
h<l\ c to he abandoned. 

51. In conclu:,ion, he ~aid that the Mexican Government 
wi-.,hed to cxprc'>~ ih grave concern at certain recent 
events which had :-.haken the very foundatitm'. of 
intl'rnational econom1c coexJ'>tcnce. Mexico reaffirmed 
its refusal to countenance economic ;,anct1ons of am kind 
whaten.-r aganbt States Members of the Organ1:lation 
\\ hich were not the result of deciGJOn., adopted withm the 
'>trict limits of the Charter of tbe United Nations. World 
t'cnnomic relations were already -.,uhject to -.,eriou;., 
enough prc..,-,urc~ and problems. and '>UCh practice~ could 
only exacerbate them: it wa.., to be hoped that they \\ ould 
not he repeated. Mexico.\\ hich had been in the forefront 
of the struggle for a new mternational economic order. 



3(l and Social 

would continue to hcline that it-. :-.tam! would he 
\ indtcatt:d hy reality. 

52 \1r. rvrBO\V (Directm-GeneraL United Nations 
EducationaL Scientific and Cultural Organization) said 
that although econmmc problems. m the strict :-.ense of 
the word ··ecnnomk···. did not fall within the competence 
of L'JESCO. all ib activitit''>. which ~upph:mented those 
nf other ~peCialized agencie-, of the United Nations. \Vere 
aimt:d at economic and social progress and peace in the 
world. At a time when UNESCO wa~ beginning the 
con:-,ideratitm of ih medmm-term plan for the period 
19?\-l-lllt-:ll, wtth a -;irnilar horizon to that nf the Thlfd 
United Nation:- Dt:H:Iopment Decade, he wi..,hed to rder 
to the method:-. u~ed for the preparation of the plan and 
the analyses \vhich ga\e ri:-.e ro some of irs ha~ic '>allent 
featun:s. indicatmg the link.., which might cxi~t hetwcen 
tl10'iC :-.alicnt feature:-. c~nd <,orne of the item~ on the agenda 
of the current -;e:-.sion lll the CounciL 

:'3. The preparation of the UNESCO medium-term 
plan for the period I YX4-191N \Va" the result of a llmg 
proces" m which a sv.;;tem of C\ aluation which had been 
gradually perfected was incorporated. That -;y:,tcm haJ 
allowed the major orgam to follow the implementation of 
the precedmg plan ( 197o-lliH2) better and had enabled 
the secretariat to decide on the relevance of the actl\ ities 
it con tamed and the eftkicnc1 of their implementation. In 
the light of the experience acquired durmg the prepara­
tion of the first plan. the n:,ults obtained dunng ih 
implementation and the evolution of the world situation. 
a preliminary document had heen submitted to the 
General Conference at ih twenty-first :-e5sion in 
September-Octoher l4HO. cmering the \vorld prohlem:­
for which UNESCO ~hould he able to help to find a 
solution. In ib rc~olution 100. the General Conference 
had e-;tabli'ihed the ha~~:s for the \\ork uf pteparing the 
plan: that work had he en ~pread over nearly two years 
and had given rise to \cry wide-ranging consultations 
among member States and international organizations 
and in intellectual circle<> gcnerall~: in particular, over 100 
member State-; had replied to the questionnaire 
addre~~ed to them. The replie-. ~howcd how the member 
States of UNESCO. which belonged to different regions 
and economic and social systems, saw the world and the 
major problem& facing the international community in 
general and UNESCO in particular. Account had also 
been taken of the secretariat\ consideration of themes 
<>uch as ·'the future of education", "science, technology 
and society" and ··tasks and challenges for social sciences 
in the 1980s". 

54. The draft medium-term plan. which would be 
considered by the General Conference of UNESCO at its 
fourth special session in November 19H2, was in two main 
parts: the first was an analysis of world problems followed 
by a list of current challenges and of missions which 
UNESCO could undertake during the period 19~4-1989, 
and the second was a description of 13 major programmes 
oriented towards reflection and action, which should 
constitute the basis for the activities of UNESCO during 
the six years under consideration. Each major pro~ 
gramme concerned prohlem<'i referred to in the first part 

1982 

and indicat<:d the objectives sought and .~trategies 

proposed. 

55. Three general observations could be made with 
regard to the medium-term plan; they related to agenda 
item 3 of the Council concerning the general discu<.,-.ion of 
internationaL economic and social policy. Fir~tly, 
rcftect1on hy UNESCO had led it to believe that economic 
and social problem~ were closely linked and were part of 
the rL·ality of ..,ocietics faced with extremely rapid change. 
Any view which tended to isolate !-.UCh problem:, from 
each other would lead to partial and random solutions. 
The problem of unemployment. for example. was 
explained b;, many factors. hut the tendency was 
frequently to C<)nsider only those relatmg tn the current 
economic ~ituation. v,ithout taking mto consideration the 
profound realitie'> of the various ;..ocletJe<> and the changes 
\\ hich were taking place within them. In the developing 
countnes. where archaic means of production were u~ed, 
the origin and forms of unemplovment \\ere not the same 
a~ m the highly indu'itnalizcd countries: and in the latter, 
in-,uflkient attention was given to the probkrns of the new 
:>kill-. required hy the rapid development of technology 
and to the fact that tnining sy;,tt:ms had not kept up \vith 
the changes which had taken place in production 
conditions and means. Thus. the solution to unemploy­
ment problem~ appl·ared tu depend not only on giving 
fre~h impctu:. to the ~.~conomy. but also on ~eeking new 
means to organize colkctive hfe and therefore on a new 
vi..,mn of social and cultural choices. 

56. The ~econd ob~crvation concerned the need to 
reconcik ;,hort-term and medium-term forecast:, in 
development planning. The current trend was to con;,ider 
only actions who~e effect was immediate and to neglect 
thme which only bore truit in the ver) long run. an 
approach that could -;eriously cornprmmse tht• future. 
The de\·eloping countries. for example, could never play 
a role m international trade corresponding to their 
aspirations and could not even achieve -;elf-sufficiency in 
food, without a considerable increase in their scientific 
and technical capacitie:-,. But '>cientitic development 
called for long and per-;istent effort. and. if the inter­
national community wished to assist those countries in 
~olving their problems themselves, it should give very 
high priority to scientific and technological development 
in those countries. That was one of the conclusions which 
UNESCO had drawn in its preparatory work for the new 
medium-term plan. 

57. The present time~ were characterized by tensions 
and constraints--the danger of nuclear. chemical and 
biological weapons. human righb violations, threats to 
the environment, the reduction of resources allocated to 
development and social progress. declining economic 
growth. progressive inflation and unemployment, per­
sistent inequalities and the extensive needs of poor. 
illiterate and underfed populations. At the same time, 
however, resistance to the uniformization of the values 
imposed by the consumer society. the claim to a cultural 
identity. with the recognition of local and national 
cultures which accompanied it. the very rapid progress of 
science and technology, and some recent developments in 



33rd meetin~:- 9 july 1982 31 

the tleld.;, of data proce.,sing, communication, infor­
mation, biOlogy and biotechnology gave cau~e for hope in 
the future. Oh,iously, views might differ \\ith regard to 
the origin of the tensions and difficulties and the means of 
elimmating them. UNESCO, for ih part-and that 
brought him to the third oh.,ervation-was endeavouring 
to co-operate \\ 1th all member State., \Vi thin the area~ of 
its competence m order to reduce ~orne of the inequalitic"> 
produced by the current international economic "Y~tem. 
In "ie\\ of the growing interdependence of the \'ariou~ 
natiom of the world, it ~eerned essential to make that 
intcrdepemknce more equitable. It wa~ theretore 
important to create the condition~ to enable each nation 
to manage ih development according to it'- own options, 
without running the ri~k of being ~ubjected to prc~->ure or 
hara.,.,ment The efforh of all people., ~hould he ~up­
ported, the mobilmttion of the full potential for creati\ it\ 
of each ot them should be encouraged and the partici­
pation of each individual in the collective effort of a 
nation ">hould be ..,ought. Tho~e were some of the general 
principle., underlying the ~alient features of the UNESCO 
draft medium-tnm plan for 191-\.f-llJiN. Tho~c orienta­
tiom were in line with the ideal which inspired the >.carch 
for a new international ccnnnmic order that wa., more 
ju'>t. and the activ itic., they called tor would help to 
achieve the objective.., of the Third United Nation" 
Development Decade. 

5~. The task<, of UNESCO for the \l}~(b were ba~ed on 
its constitution, which emphasized the role of .,piritual 
activities in the orientation of mankind's hi~toncal 

eYolution. Thw .. , the central role of UNESCO was to he a 
permanent forum for the exchange of idea:, and reflection 
on the nature and scope of mankind\ problem~, in order 
to throw light on the area., of agreement which could give 
ri.;,e to joint action to meet the a~piration" of all people~ to 
peace and progress. A number of specific tasks Jeri\ ed 
from that role: contributing to reflection on world prob­
lems and to awarene'>s of them: contributing to creating 
the condition<> for broader participation by individuals and 
groups m the life of the societie~ to which they belonged 
and that of the world community (through the eradication 
of illiteracy and the development of communication): 
contributing to development and the sharing of know­
ledge, as well a~ to the ability to use that knowledge to 
solve the problems facing variou~ societies (progre:-.s in 
education, adaptation to the needs of individuals and 
societies, the development of research and training in the 
various scientific fields and of broader access to special­
ized information, particularly scientific and technical 
information): contributing to the achievement of certain 
changes and transitions necessary for development which 
would make the well-being of individuals and the progress 
of peoples possible, to the control of science and 
technolog)', and to the rational utilization of the environ­
ment and the management of natural resources, all of 
which were areas of activity in which interagency 
co-operation was already very close and in which 
UNESCO would endeavour to strengthen international 
co-operation ~till further: and lastly, underlining the 
convergence of fundamental values common to different 

culture<,, ~o as to promote greater under>.tandmg among 
people'> and further the cau~e nf peace and reo.;pect for 
human right... (through the promotiOn of culture, the 
fight against mtolerance, prejudice, raci~m and apartheid, 
and the promotion uf re~earch and education concernmg 
peace, disarmament and human nghb). It wa~ important 
to prevent md!llerence and C) nici.,m-partJcul:.trly m the 
mind~ of the younger generat10n~-the tragtc con~e­

quences of which were already endent. 

59. Through a ">et ot cnm·ergmg act I\ itie~ carried out 
within the framework of the 13 programme., contained in 
ih draft medium-term plan, UNESCO would be able 
better to contribute to the Umted Natiom effort m the 
tield~ of development, peace, JUstice and ~ulidant!. 
Member State~ of UNESCO \\mild be happy to welcome 
the Pre~ident of the Economic and Social Council It he 
wi~hed to attend the next "pecial se-...,!on of the General 
Conference, at which the UNESCO draft medium-term 
plan for the period 19S.f-19Sl} \\ ould he comidered. 

fl(). He hoped that the Economic and Social Council 
would be able to de\ote one of ih ..,e.,..,ion ... to a detailed 
exchange of view., on the ">allent feature"> uf the 
medium-term plan-.. of the variou., United Natiom 
agencie<,, ">mce that \\ould undoubtedly help to revitali7e 
the Council and would enable it better tu earn out 1ts 
re..,ponsibilltie">. 
hi. Mr. MAKEYEV (Union nf Smiet Social!~t 

Republic-;), ~peak.mg in exerci>.e ot the nght of rep!\, '>aid 
that, at the Council'~ J ht meeting, the repre.,entati\ e of 
thL' United State~ of Amenea had, a., wa~ hi., Gmern­
menf.., wont, ..,[andered -.ocialio;.,m as a ... y..,tem and ..,tated 
that the USSR wa~ currently mcapahle of ~oh mg lh 

agncultural problem<,, wherea~, before 1917, T ">ari~t 
Ru..,sia had exported gram. What the repre..,entati\ e nf the 
Umted State~ had omitted to ment1on wa~ that T~art">t 
Ru~sia wa~ a backward country who"e leader., had .,old 
wheat abroad while at home 70 mil !ton people (or .+7 per 
cent of the population) did not have enough to cat. If that 
wa~ the export-oriented type of economy tn be prnpo~ed 
now for the de\ eloping countrie'>, it could only be 
considered acceptable b) tho~e who could accept the fact 
that, in the1r own developed country, millions of people 
did not have '>Ufficient food or sati"factory hou~ing, a 
point ignored by the official ~tatistic-,. 

62. Furthermore, the USSR did not have the benefit of 
natural conditions that were favourable to wheat pro­
duction. Climatic conditions comparable to those of the 
United States were to be found on only J per cent of ib 
agricultural land. Despite that fact, average per capita 
calorie consumption in the USSR was comparable with 
that of the Western countne.., or the United State>.. 
During the 1970s, the USSR\ agricultural production had 
increased by 50 per cent compared with the 19fl(b and per 
capita consumption wa~ rapidly increa~mg. The USSR 
imported cereals merely becau~e it was making use uf the 
international division of labour, ~elling important raw 
materials on the world market-energy, as well a~ food 
and fodder products-and buying grain from countries 
which were the traditional producer~ of grain and wished 
to sell to it. It did not use force to guarantee the security of 



32 Economic and Social Council - Second Regular Session, 1982 

it~ ;)Upplies. unlike the United States. which proclaimed 
the regions from which it imported oil and certain raw 
matt:rials .. areas of tratcgic interest"'. so that subse­
quently it could threate n those regi(lllS with the dispu rch 
o f rapid deployme nt force::;. 
o}. The members of the Council might perhaps like to 
hear about the facts published in the May !982 issue of 
Developmellt Forum: the United States imported more 
meat than it exported. not to mention fish. which wa 
even imported from African countries where famine was 
rife. If the massive financial re~ources which transnational 
corporations ~iphoned our of the developing countncs to 
the benefit of the Western countries were also taken into 
account. pcopl~ would recognize. as Professor G . Kent 
d id. that the poor feu the rich. 
6-l. During the gene ral debate . another delegation. 
listing the disquieting evcnts which overshadowed the 
horizon. had "forgottt::n'' tn mention the colonial war of 
aggression which had just ended in the South Atlantic. ft 
wa~ dilliwlt to imagine that C billi0n had been spent o n 
prNecting the interests of a handful o f colonialists and 
NJO.OOO sheep. It would seem more likely that such 
aggression CttUid be explained by the smell of oil and not 
that of mutton . 

o.'i . The description of Western ... ociety as a ·'prosperouo; 
so<:iety", when it wa-; undergoing the deepe')t rece~sion 
re~onkt.l ~ince the end of the Second Wo rld War and had 
.10 million unemployed. could only be regarded a~ 
iro nical. Although that crisis was inherent in the capitalist 
system, in the ' icw of certain expert!> and some of the 
reports hcfore the Council. it had bee n further aggr::~vatcd 
recently by the economic policy of the Reagan adrnini~­

tration. 
60. Anuther delegation had expre,sed regret that the 

Red Cross mission had not been allowed into Beirut . It 
would be more appropriate to ask who had financed and 
armed the Israeli solt.l iers who had sown death in 
Lchanon . Furthe rmo re. those who deplored violations of 
human rights in general and of the rights of certain 
pe rsons in particular would do better to bear in mind that 
a who le people had been expelled from its country. 
Pa lestine. and that it was customary in the United Nations 
to speak of genocide when referring to such acts. 
67. He rejected the attempt at interference in the 
internal affairs of the socialist countries. which were the 
result of a crusade against c;ocialism. as unacceptable and 
unfounded. In the past. such attempts had a lways failed. 

68. Mr. SORZANO (United States of America). 
spc::~king in exercise of the right o f n.:ply. thanked the 
represe ntative of the USSR for the geographical and 
climatic information he had given the Council with regard 
tn Soviet agriculture. In his statement. he had wished to 
stress the stimulating role of private initiative. £t was well 
known that. in the USSR. small private plots were more 
producti"e than large collective farms. He wondered 
whcther the former enjoyed more favourable climatic 
condi tions than the latter. 
6Y . Mr. MICH AEL (United Kingdom). ~peaking in 
exercbe of the r ight of reply, expressed regret regarding 
the remarks made by the rcpre:,enta tivc of the USSR with 
regard to the war which had take n place in the South 
Atlan tic. He reserve~! his delegation's right to return to 
thnt ~ubject subsequently if ncccs~ary. 
70. Mr . MAKEYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics). speaking in excrci-.;e of the right of reply . said 
that he reserved his delegation's right to return to that 
~ubject. upon which there was still a great deal to be said. 

Tire meeting rose ut I p.m. 




